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Ronda Baldwin-Kennedy, Esq. (SB #302813)
Jerome A Clay, Esq. (327175)
Law Office of Ronda Baldwin-Kennedy
5627 Kanan Rd. #614
Agoura Hills, CA 91301
Ph: (951) 268-8977
Fax: (702) 974-0147
Email: ronda@Ilorbk.com
Attorney for: Plaintiffs Donald McDougall

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA-WESTERN DIVISION
Donald McDougall an Individual; CASE NO.
Plaintiffs,
V. COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE
COUNTY OF VENTURA CAL IFORNIA RELIEF VIOLATION OF U.S. CONST
Does 1-20 and Roes 1-20 ’ (42 U.S.C.A. § 1983 (West))

Defendant. (JURY TRIAL DEMANDED)

Come Now the Plaintiff, Donald McDougall by and through undersigned counsel, and complain of
the Defendant as follows:
THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Donald McDougall (Plaintiff) is a natural person and a citizen of the United States
residing in Camarillo, California county of Ventura.
2. Defendant County of Ventura (Ventura County) is a county organized under the

Constitution and laws of the State of California.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.A. 8§
131,1343,2201,2202 (West), 42 U.S.C.A. § 1983.
Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C.A. § 1391 (West).

INTRODUCTION

This lawsuit is a 42 U.S.C.A. § 1983 action seeking declaratory and injunctive relief from
the Ventura County Stay Well at Home Order of the Ventura County Health Officer
deprivation of Plaintiff and Ventura County residents’14™ Amendment right to due process
and infringement on Plaintiff’s Second Amendment rights.

On March 19, 2020 Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-33-20 directing all
residents immediately heed current State and public health directives to stay at home.
Under the executive Order all non-essential businesses were ordered closed.

Under the executive Order law enforcement and private security was deemed an essential
workforce.

March 20", 2020 Ventura County Health Officer issued a Stay Well at Home Order which
ordered all non- essential business closed.

Stay Well at Home Order in Paragraph 7(e)(15) defines an essential business as businesses
that supply other essential businesses with the support or supplies necessary to operate.
Ventura County deemed Gun Stores as a non-essential business.

Gun Stores supplies, products needed for law enforcement and private security both which
are essential businesses/workforce.

In California, individuals are required to purchase and transfer firearms and ammunition
through state and federally licensed dealers.

Furthermore, the Second Amendment guarantees citizens the right to keep and bear arms.
The right to bear arms is a fundamental right enumerated in the Second Amendment.

The various Orders that have been put in place by Ventura County and the Ventura County
Health Officer Robert Levin, MD are unconstitutionally vague, over burdensome, and
overly broad, and violate the Second and Fourteenth Amendment rights of Plaintiff and

similarly situated Ventura County residents.
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This order essentially bans the sale of guns in Ventura County.

LEGAL AUTHORITIES AND STANDARD OF REVIEW
STRICT SCRUTINY
U.S. Const. amend. Il AND XIV
The Second Amendment to the United States Constitution provides: A well-regulated

Militia being necessary to the security of a free State, the right of the people to keep and
bear Arms shall not be infringed.

The Second Amendment “guarantee[s] the individual right to possess and carry weapons in
case of confrontation.” District of Columbia v. Heller (2008) 554 U.S. 570, 592 [128 S.Ct.
2783, 171 L.Ed.2d 637]. And it “elevates above all other interests the right of law-abiding,

responsible citizens to use arms in defense of hearth and home.” Id. at p. 635.

The Second Amendment is fully applicable to the States thought the Fourteenth
Amendment’s Due Process and Privileges or Immunities Clauses. McDonald v. City of
Chicago, 1lI. (2010) 561 U.S. 742, 750 [130 S.Ct. 3020, 177 L.Ed.2d 894]; id. at p. 805
(Thomas, J., concurring).

The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides in pertinent part: No
state shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of
citizens of the United States; nor shall any state deprive any person of life, liberty, or
property, without due process of law; nor deny to any person within its jurisdiction the
equal protection of the laws.

Plaintiff alleges violations under the Second and Fourteenth Amendment are fundamental
rights under the U.S. Constitution and therefore Strict Scrutiny should be used to analyze
the infringement. With Strict scrutiny, Ventura County must show a compelling
governmental interest, narrowly tailored to achieve the goal, and the least restrictive way to
achieve that goal.

Ventura County may have a compelling government interest, to ensure that the Maximum
number of persons stay indoors in order to slow the spread of COVID-19 to the maximum
extent possible. (see exhibit a) However, Ventura County did not narrowly tailor and took
the most restrictive way to achieve that goal, by closing gun stores. There are least

restrictive ways to achieve that goal, Ventura County, allows other business such as
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drycleaners to remain open using measure such as social distancing, or having customers
shop by appointment. None of these measures were taken prior to closing the gun stores.
EXECUTIVE ORDER N-33-20

Effective March 19, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom signed Executive Order N-33-20,
directing all individuals living in California to “stay home or at their place of residence
except as needed to maintain continuity of operations of the federal critical infrastructure
sectors.” This Order is in place until further notice. The Executive Order provides that
Californians working in critical infrastructure sectors may continue their work because of
the importance of these sectors to Californians’ health and well-being. The Executive Order
includes a list of Essential Workforce/Critical Infrastructure® which named law

enforcement and private security as an essential workforce.

STAY WELL AT HOME ORDER OF THE VENTURA COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER

25.

26.

Effective March 20, 2020, Robert Levin M.D., Ventura County Health Officer signed the
Stay Well at Home Order (Exhibit A) which incorporated Executive Order N-33-20,
directing all individuals living in Ventura County to “Stay at their place of residence as
required by the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, subject to the exemptions set forth in
this order” Further, the Stay Well at Home Order 83 list exemptions to the Order which
states in part “Persons may leave their places of residence only for Essential Activities...to
operate or work at Essential Businesses” 87 (€) (15) defines an essential business as
“Businesses that supply other Essential Businesses with the support or supplies necessary

’

to operate...’
Gun stores provide supplies necessary for the operation of private security and law

enforcement, however if gun stores are closed they are not made available to the essential

workforce.

L https://covid19.ca.gov/img/EssentialCritical InfrastructureWorkers.pdf
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Further, the order states that violations of the Stay Well at Home Order are a misdemeanor
punishable by imprisonment, fine, or both under California Health and Section Code
120295 et seq.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In California, individuals are required to purchase and transfer firearms and ammunition

through state and federally licensed dealers.

Under Federal and State law anyone in California, individuals are required to complete a
background check with a 10 day wait period. Once 10 days has passed the purchaser has 30
days to pick up their firearm and complete the transfer documents.

Further, it is required that prior to the purchaser removing the firearm from the licensed gun
store they do so with a gunlock and gun box. These items are also available for purchased
at a gun store.

Mr. McDougall, purchased a firearm from a Gun Store within the County of Ventura.
During the mandatory waiting period, the Executive order N-33-20 and Stay Well at Home
Orders were enacted.

The County of Ventura upon advice from County Counsel Leroy Smith declared all Gun
Stores within the county limits were non-essential and thereby forcing the gun stores to
close.

After the closure Plaintiff has been unable to pick up his purchased firearm; Mr. McDougal
and similarly situated Ventura county residents’ constitutional rights under the second
amendment are currently being violated.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION-CLOSING OF GUN STORES
RIGHT TO KEEP AND BEAR ARMS
U.S. Const. amend. Il AND X1V 42 U.S.C.A. § 1983

Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference paragraphs 1 through 32 as if fully set forth

herein.
The Second Amendment right is incorporated as against the states and their political

subdivisions pursuant to the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.
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The Second Amendment right to keep and bear arms is a privilege and immunity of United
States citizenship which, pursuant to the Fourteenth Amendment, states and their political
subdivisions may not violate.

By the closing gun stores, Ventura County currently maintain and actively enforce a set of
laws, customs, practices, and policies under color of state law which deprive individuals,
including Plaintiff, of their right to keep and bear arms, in violation of the Second and

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.

These closures are essentially banning firearm sales in Ventura County.

Plaintiff and similarly situated Ventura County residents are thus damaged in violation of
42 U.S.C.A. § 1983. Plaintiff is therefore entitled to declaratory and permanent injunctive
relief against continued enforcement and maintenance of Ventura County’s unconstitutional
customs, policies, and practices.

Executive Order N-33-20, Safer at Home Order For Control of COVID- 19 the Ventura
County’s policies, practices, and customs prohibit law-abiding individuals from purchasing
firearms and ammunition for the purpose of protecting themselves and their families (or for
any other purpose). Independently and collectively, these acts stand as a bar on firearms
acquisition and ownership and amount to a categorical ban on and infringement of the right
to keep and bear arms and the privileges and immunities of citizenship.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION — NEW FIREARM PURCHASE
EQUAL PROTECTION
U.S. Const. amend. XIV 42 U.S.C.A. § 1983
Paragraphs 1 through 39 are incorporated as though fully stated herein.

By forcing gun stores to close Ventura County currently maintain and actively enforce a
set of laws, customs, practices, and policies under color of state law which deprive
individuals, including the Plaintiff, of their right to equal protection of the laws, in violation
of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution. Plaintiff and similarly
situated Ventura County residence are thus damaged in violation of 42 U.S.C.A. § 1983.
Ventura County Residents who wish to purchase firearms post Executive Order N-33-20
and The Stay Well at Home Order are unable to purchase firearms, as other Ventura County

Residents were able to do so pre Orders.
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Plaintiff is therefore entitled to declaratory and permanent injunctive relief against
continued enforcement of unconstitutional customs, policies, and practices.
Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference paragraphs 1 through 34 as if fully set forth

herein.

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF-STANDARD
Plaintiffs incorporate herein by reference paragraphs 1 through 43 as if fully set forth

herein.

Plaintiffs are entitled to preliminary injunctive relief if they show: (1) likely success on the
merits; (2) likely irreparable harm absent preliminary relief; (3) the balance of equities tips
in their favor; and (4) an injunction is in the public’s interest. Pimentel v. Dreyfus (9th Cir.
2012) 670 F.3d 1096, 1105-06; Sierra Forest Legacy v. Rey (9th Cir. 2009) 577 F.3d 1015,

1021. Under our “sliding scale” approach, a stronger showing of one element may offset a
weaker showing of another, as long as plaintiffs “establish that irreparable harm is likely.”
All for Alliance for the Wild Rockies v. Cottrell (9th Cir. 2011) 632 F.3d 1127, 1131.
Plaintiff enjoys a fundamental right to keep and bear arms. McDonald, supra, 561 U.S.
742,130S.Ct. 3020, 2010 (2010) (majority op.), at *113 (Thomas, J.). “[T]he inherent right
of self-defense has been central to the Second Amendment right.” District of Columbia,
supra, 128 S.Ct. at p. 2817.

However, if gun stores are not open and made available to the essential workforce Plaintiff

and similarly situated residence of Ventura County they will continue to suffer irreparable

harm.

There is no way to quantify, in terms of money damages, the inability to engage in

protected Second Amendment activity such as the purchase of firearms.

Plaintiff will prevail on the merits as Ventura County closures of gun stores violate

Plaintiff’s and similarly situated Ventura County resident’s second amendment rights.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for the following relief:

1. Plaintiff request a preliminary and permanent injunction restraining Ventura County
and their officers, agents, servants, employees, and all persons in concert or

participation with them who receive notice of the injunction, from enforcing Stay
7
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Well at Home Order on gun stores situated within Ventura County and Ventura
County’s policies, practices, and customs that individually and/or collectively

prohibit the purchase and sale of firearms and ammunition;

. An injunction directing Ventura County and their officers, agents, servants,

employees, and all persons in concert or participation with them who receive notice
of the injunction, to cease and desist enacting or enforcing any Order or declaration
that firearm and ammunition retailers are not an essential business, or, in the
alternative, an injunction preventing Ventura County from enforcing their laws,
policies, practices, and customs that prevent individuals from buying and selling
arms in accordance with State and federal laws;

Nominal damages against Ventura County;

. All other and further relief, including injunctive relief, against Ventura County as

necessary to effectuate the Court’s judgment, or as the Court otherwise deems just

and equitable; and,

. Attorney’s fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C.A. 8 1988 (West) and any other

applicable law. Attorney Fees and Costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C.A. § 1988; Costs of

suit; and

. Any other further relief as the Court deems just and appropriate.

Dated: March 28, 2020

/S/ Ronda Baldwin-Kennedy
Ronda Baldwin-Kennedy, Esqg.
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EXHIBIT A
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STAY WELL AT HOME

ORDER OF THE VENTURA COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER

ORDER DIRECTING PERSONS LIVING IN THE COUNTY OF VENTURA

TO STAY AT THEIR PLACES OF RESIDENCE AND RESTRICTING NON-

ESSENTIAL ACTIVITIES IN RESPONSE TO COVID-19

DATE OF ORDER: MARCH 20, 2020

Please read this Order carefully. This Order supplements the Health Officer’s Order
dated March 17, 2020, and the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20 dated March 19, 2020.
All prior orders of the Health Officer remain in place.

PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 101040, 101085 AND 120175 OF THE HEALTH AND SAFETY
CODE, THE HEALTH OFFICER OF VENTURA COUNTY HEREBY ORDERS AS
FOLLOWS:

1.

Intent. Consistent with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, the intent of this Order
is to ensure that the maximum number of persons stay in their places of residence to the
maximum extent feasible, while enabling essential services to continue, to slow the
spread of COVID-19 to the maximum extent possible. When persons need to leave their
places of residence, whether to obtain or perform vital services, or to otherwise facilitate
authorized activities necessary for continuity of social and commercial life, they should at
all times reasonably possible comply with Social Distancing Requirements as defined
below. All provisions of this Order should be interpreted to effectuate this intent and to
be consistent with and in furtherance of the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20.
Failure to comply with any of the provisions of this Order constitutes an imminent threat
to public health.

Persons to stay in places of residence. All persons currently living within Ventura
County are ordered to stay at their places of residence, as required by the Governor’s
Executive Order N-33-20, subject to the exemptions set forth in this Order. This Order
applies to all persons in the incorporated cities and the entire unincorporated area of
Ventura County (the “County”). To the extent persons are outside of their places of
residence, they must at all times as reasonably possible maintain a physical distance of at
least six feet from any other person.

Persons of all ages may leave their places of residence for the purpose of physical activity
by themselves or with members of their household in compliance with Social Distancing
Requirements, such as walking, running, bicycling or working around their places of
residence, including gardening. Persons experiencing homelessness are exempt from this
section, but are strongly urged to obtain shelter, and governmental and other entities are
strongly urged to make such shelter available as soon as possible and to the maximum
extent practicable (and to use Social Distancing Requirements in their operation).
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3. Exemptions to the order to stay in places of residence. Except for persons governed by
section 1 of the Health Officer’s Order dated March 17, 2020, persons may leave their
places of residence only for Essential Activities and Essential Governmental Functions or
Services or to operate or work at Essential Businesses. (All capitalized terms in this
Order are defined in section 7 below.)

4. Businesses to close. All businesses with a facility in the County, except Essential
Businesses, are required to cease all activities at facilities located within the County
except Minimum Basic Operations. For clarity, businesses may continue operations
consisting exclusively of employees or contractors performing activities at their own
places of residence. All Essential Businesses are strongly encouraged to remain open.
To the greatest extent feasible, Essential Businesses shall comply with Social Distancing
Requirements, including for any customers standing in line. For the purposes of this
Order, businesses as used in this section include any for-profit, non-profit or educational
entities, regardless of the nature of their services, the functions they perform, or their
corporate or entity structure.

5. Gatherings of more than 10 persons prohibited. All public and private gatherings of more
than 10 persons who are not part of a single household or living unit are prohibited,
except for gatherings as part of the operation of an Essential Business. Nothing in this
Order prohibits the gathering of members of a household or living unit within a place of
residence or the operation of a shelter for persons experiencing homelessness.

6. Travel prohibited. All travel, including, but not limited to, travel on motorcycle,
automobile or public transit, except for Essential Travel and Essential Activities, is
prohibited. Persons may use public transit only for purposes of performing Essential
Activities or to travel to and from work at Essential Businesses or to maintain, provide or
receive Essential Governmental Functions or Services. Persons riding on public transit
must comply with Social Distancing Requirements, to the greatest extent feasible. This
Order allows travel into or out of the County to perform Essential Activities, operate
Essential Businesses or to maintain or provide Essential Governmental Functions or
Services.

7. Definitions and exemptions.

For the purposes of this Order:

a. Essential Activities. Persons may leave their places of residence only to perform
any of the following “Essential Activities” (but persons at high risk of severe
illness from COVID-19 and persons who are sick are urged to stay in their places
of residence to the extent possible except as necessary to seek medical care):

i. To engage in activities or perform tasks essential to their health and safety,
or to the health and safety of their family or household members
(including pets), such as, by way of example, obtaining medical supplies
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or medication, visiting a health care professional, or obtaining supplies
needed to work from a place of residence.

ii. To obtain necessary services or supplies for themselves and their family or
household members, or to deliver those services or supplies to others, such
as, by way of example, canned food, dry goods, fresh fruits and
vegetables, pet supply, fresh meats, fish and poultry, and any other
household consumer products, and products necessary to maintain the
safety, sanitation, and essential operation of places of residence.

iii. To engage in outdoor activity, provided the persons comply with Social
Distancing Requirements, such as, by way of example, walking, hiking,
running, bicycling or yard work.

iv. To perform work providing products and services at an Essential Business
or to otherwise carry out activities specifically permitted in this Order,
including Minimum Basic Operations.

v. To care for a family member or pet in another household.

b. Healthcare Operation. Persons may leave their places of residence to work for or
obtain services at any “Healthcare Operation,” including hospitals, clinics,
dentists, pharmacies, pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, other licensed
healthcare facilities, healthcare suppliers, home healthcare services providers,
mental health providers, or any related and/or ancillary healthcare services,
including blood donation centers. “Healthcare Operation™ also includes
veterinary care and all healthcare services provided to animals. This exemption
shall be construed broadly to avoid any impacts to the delivery of healthcare,
broadly defined. “Healthcare Operation” does not include fitness and exercise
gyms, aquatic centers and similar facilities.

c. KEssential Infrastructure. Persons may leave their places of residence to provide
any services or perform any work necessary to the operations and maintenance of
“Essential Infrastructure,” which means and includes, but is not limited to, public
works construction, construction of housing (in particular affordable housing or
housing for persons experiencing homelessness), airport and port operations,
military installations, water, sewer, gas, electrical, oil and gas production and
refining including associated businesses and activities, roads and highways,
public transportation, solid waste collection and removal, funeral homes and
cemeteries, internet, and telecommunications systems (including the provision of
essential global, national, and local infrastructure for computing services, business
infrastructure, communications, and web-based services), provided that they carry
out those services or that work in compliance with Social Distancing
Requirements, to the extent possible. All U.S. Department of Defense activities
are categorically exempt from this Order.

d. Essential Governmental Functions or Services. Government functions or services
performed by first responders, emergency management personnel, emergency
dispatchers, court personnel, and law enforcement personnel, and others who need
to perform essential governmental functions or services, as such may be
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determined by the governmental entity performing those functions or providing
such services, shall be considered “Essential Governmental Functions or
Services.” All persons who perform Essential Governmental Functions or
Services are categorically exempt from this Order. Further, nothing in this Order
shall prohibit any person from performing or accessing Essential Governmental
Functions or Services. Each governmental entity shall identify and designate
appropriate employees or contractors to continue providing and carrying out any
Essential Governmental Functions or Services. All Essential Governmental
Functions or Services shall be performed in compliance with Social Distancing
Requirements, to the extent possible.

e. Essential Businesses. “Essential Businesses” means:

i.
ii.

iil.

iv.

vi.
vil.
viii.
ix.

Xi.

Healthcare Operations and Essential Infrastructure;

Grocery stores, certified farmers’ markets, farm and produce stands,
supermarkets, food banks, convenience stores, and other establishments
engaged in the retail sale of canned or frozen food, dry goods, beverages,
fresh fruits and vegetables, pet supply, fresh meats, fish and poultry, and
any other household consumer products (such as cleaning and personal
care products). This includes stores that sell groceries and also sell other
non-grocery products, and products necessary to maintaining the safety,
sanitation and essential operation of places of residence;

Any form of agricultural production and processing, including the
cultivation of products for personal consumption or use, including farming
and services provided by farmworkers, ranching, livestock, and fishing, as
well as business activities that support production and processing by
providing essential agricultural supplies and services, including
transportation, manufacturing, equipment, and services such as cooling,
storing, packaging, and distribution of such products for wholesale or
retail sale, provided that, to the extent possible, such businesses comply
with Social Distancing Requirements and otherwise provide for the health
and safety of their employees;

Businesses that provide food, shelter, and social services, and other
necessities of life for economically disadvantaged, compromised or
otherwise needy persons;

Newspapers and television, radio, and other media services;

Gas stations and auto-supply, auto-repair, and related facilities;

Banks and related financial institutions;

Hardware stores;

Plumbers, electricians, exterminators and other service providers who
provide services that are necessary to maintaining the safety, sanitation
and essential operation of places of residence, Essential Activities and
Essential Businesses;

Businesses providing mailing and shipping services, including post office
boxes;

Educational institutions, including public and private K-12 schools,
colleges, and universities, for purposes of facilitating distance learning or



Case 2:20-cv-02927-CBM-AS Document 1-1 Filed 03/28/20 Page 6 of 8 Page ID #:14

xii.
Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

xvil.

XVviii.

Xix.
XX.

xxi.

XXii.

XXx1ii.

performing essential functions, in compliance with Social Distancing
Requirements, to the greatest extent possible;

Laundromats, drycleaners and laundry service providers;

Restaurants and other facilities that prepare and serve food, but only for
delivery or carry out. Schools and other entities that typically provide free
food services to students or members of the public may continue to do so
under this Order on the condition that the food is provided to students or
members of the public on a pick-up and take-away basis only. Schools
and other entities that provide food services under this exemption shall not
permit the food to be eaten at the site where it is provided, or at any other
gathering site;

Businesses that supply products needed for persons to work from their
places of residence;

Businesses that supply other Essential Businesses with the support or
supplies necessary to operate, including, by way of example, businesses
that manufacture products for ultimate use in a Healthcare Operation;
Businesses that ship or deliver groceries, food, goods or services directly
to places of residence;

Airlines, taxis and other private transportation providers providing
transportation services necessary for Essential Activities and other
purposes expressly authorized in this Order;

Home-based care for seniors, adults or children;

Residential facilities and shelters for seniors, adults and children;
Professional services, such as legal or accounting services, when
necessary to assist in compliance with legally mandated activities;
Childcare facilities providing services that enable employees exempted in
this Order to work as permitted. Childcare facilities must operate under
the following mandatory conditions:

1. Childcare must be carried out in stable groups of 12 or fewer
(“stable” means that the same 12 or fewer children are in the same
group each day).

2. Children shall not change from one group to another.

3. If more than one group of children is cared for at one facility, each
group shall be in a separate room. Groups shall not mix with each
other.

4. Childcare providers shall remain solely with one group of children.
Hotels, motels, bed-and-breakfast establishments and other businesses that
provide transient occupancy for visitors to the County, provided that such
businesses require their patrons to stay in place as otherwise required by
this Order.

Commercial construction provided that such activity implements Social
Distancing Requirements to the extent feasible and otherwise provides for
the health and safety of employees.
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f. Minimum Basic Operations. “Minimum Basic Operations” means and includes
the following, provided that employees comply with Social Distancing
Requirements, to the extent possible, while carrying out such operations:

i. The minimum necessary activities to maintain the value of the business’s
inventory, ensure security, process payroll and employee benefits, or for
related functions.

ii. The minimum necessary activities to facilitate employees of the business
being able to continue to work remotely from their places of residence.

g. Essential Travel. “Essential Travel” means and includes travel within or without
the County, or between the various counties, for any of the following purposes,
subject to Social Distancing Requirements:

i. Any travel related to the provision of or access to Essential Activities,
Essential Governmental Functions or Services, Essential Businesses or
Minimum Basic Operations.

ii. Travel to care for elderly persons, minors, dependents, persons with
disabilities, or other vulnerable persons.

iii. Travel to or from educational institutions for purposes of receiving
materials for distance learning, for receiving meals, and any other related
services.

iv. Travel to return to a place of residence from outside the County.

v. Travel required by law enforcement or court order.

vi. Travel required for non-residents to return to their places of residence
outside the County.

vii. Travel engaged in interstate commerce and otherwise subject to the
provisions of the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution.

h. Hotels, etc. Places of residence include hotels, motels, shared rental units and
similar facilities.

i. Social Distancing Requirements. “Social Distancing Requirements” means and
includes maintaining at least a six-foot physical distance from other persons,
washing hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds or using hand sanitizer
as frequently as possible, covering coughs or sneezes (into the sleeve or elbow,
not hands), regularly cleaning high-touch surfaces, and not shaking hands.

8. Commercial laboratory test results. All commercial laboratories that test persons in the
County for the presence of COVID-19 must report all test results (whether positive or
negative) to the County Public Health Department laboratory within eight hours of
receiving the test results.

9. Compliance. The violation of any provision of this Order constitutes a threat to public
health. Pursuant to Government Code sections 26602 and 41601 and Health and Safety
Code section 101029, the Health Officer requests that the Sheriff and all chiefs of police
in the County ensure compliance with and enforce this Order.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Effective date and time. This Order shall become effective and operative at 11:59 p.m.
on March 20, 2020, and will continue to be in effect until 11:59 p.m. on April 19, 2020,
or until it is extended, rescinded, superseded or amended in writing by the Health Officer.

Continuing assessment. The Health Officer will continue to assess the quickly evolving
situation, may issue additional orders related to COVID-19 and will review this Order
within two weeks of its effective date.

Copies of Order. Copies of this Order shall promptly be: (1) made available at the
County of Ventura Public Health Office, 2240 East Gonzalez Road, Suite 210, Oxnard,
California, 93036; (2) posted on the County Public Health Department website (available
at www.vchca.org/ph); and (3) provided to any member of the public requesting a copy
of this Order.

Severability. If any provision of this Order or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance is held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of
the Order, including the application of such part or provision to other persons or
circumstances, shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. To this
end, the provisions of this Order are severable.

March 17, 2020, Order. This Order supplements the Order dated March 17, 2020, which
remains in full force and effect pursuant to its terms.

IT IS SO ORDERED:

<
<AL Dated: March Z@), 2020

Robert Levin, M.D.
Ventura County Health Officer

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 120295 et seq., violation of or failure to comply
with this Order is a misdemeanor punishable by fine, imprisonment, or both.



